
2012-2017 Liberty Partnerships Program GC#12-005 
 

Q & A as of June 7, 2012 
 
Answers to questions are provided underlined and in blue font 
 
III. INSTITUTIONAL ELIGIBILITY 
 
If an IHE is applying for the Liberty 2012-2017 grant, can a CBO submit another 
application as the lead agency, from the same region?  Eligible lead applicants are IHEs.  
CBOs can not be the lead applicant for this funding opportunity.  Only in circumstances 
where there is an area of the state in which no IHE applies to provide appropriate 
services to eligible students, a not- for-profit community-based organization(s) in 
cooperation with a LEA may apply. 
 
IV. STUDENT PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY 

Since the grant spans 5 years but grades 5 - 12, is is possible to focus our efforts on 
students in the earlier grades (i.e. 5-9) and still be eligible for the grant?  You may 
choose to service any grade/age group of your liking as long as they fall within the 5 
through 12 grade requirement and under the age of 20.  

Our current partnered school district is a “Title I” school; will this make them eligible to 
be our LEA going forward with this next RFP for 2012-2017?  All New York State schools 
(LEAs) are eligible partners; proposals that seek to partner with LEAs that serve student 
populations that are most at risk will receive greater points. 

Our current partnered LEA is listed as “In Need of Improvement-Year 1” under the 2011-
12 District Accountability List on the NYSED website.    Does this designation allow for us 
to continue our work with this district for the next funding 2012-2017 funding cycle? Yes. 

 

VI. PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS FOR LIBERTY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATIONS 
 
Since there have been multiple delays with the 2012-2017 LPP RFP, including the initial 
delay in the release of the LPP RFP, followed by the two day delay with LPP RFP Webinar; 
and now there will be a further delay in answers to the LPP RFP Webinar Questions to 
June 15th;   will the LPP MOA’s be accepted if they are not fully executed?  For this 
funding cycle Partnership Agreements are required.  The Partnership Agreement must be 
submitted with the application.  If an agreement is not submitted, the application will be 
disqualified.  If a partnership agreement is not signed by all parties to the agreement, it 
will not be evaluated for scoring purposes and the application will be disqualified.  
 
Column # 1 on Appendix 4 in the RFP indicates that only degree programs at IHEs 
should be listed on the collaborating agency form. The rubric states that Appendix 4 
should “provide the process for cooperation with LEAs, IHEs, municipalities, businesses 
and not-for-profit community based organizations.” Should we list all collaborators on 
that form or just the degree programs?   



Appendix 4 contains 3 Forms:  
Appendix 4 – Collaborating Agency Forms, Form 1 - IHE 
Appendix 4 – Collaborating Agency Forms, Form 2 – Partner Schools and Appendix 4 – 
Collaborating Agency Forms, Form 3 – Partner Organizations 
Applicants should appropriately list the entities on the appropriate forms. 
 
 
 

Is it allowable for a school district/high school to align with more than one IHE on 
multiple applications to increase their chance of getting funding or do they need to select 
one IHE to partner with?  See below. 

Can the same LEA partner with more than one IHE if the IHE's are pursuing separate 
grants? 
See below. 
 
Can a school district agree to partner with more than one IHE submitting an application? 
This has been done in the past, is this acceptable for the 2012-2017 RFP? 
An LEA may partner with more then one IHE.  However, the IHE’s must serve different 
students. 

X.  BUDGET  

On pg. 19, E6 - is there a definition of LPP Director's Supervisor? I am assuming this is 
different from the project director that is required by the grant - is this the case? The 
LPP Director’s Supervisor is anyone who supervises the LPP Director: The VP, Dean, etc. 

Are we required to include costs in our budget for a statewide data system and 
evaluation? Yes, 1% of the applicants proposed total budget. 
If we have several contacts and persons involved with planning under one degree 
program, do we list them all individually? No. There should be one primary contact for 
each degree program. 
 
Page 18 of the RFP implies funds should be included in project budgets for the required 
independent evaluator. Is that the case? If so, should the amount be based on the # of 
students to be served and/or other criteria and/or capped at 2.5% of the total annual 
project budget? The amount allocated for the independent evaluator should not exceed 
2.5% of each applicants proposed budget.  
  
Just under that requirement on page 18 is a reference to a budget line item for 
maintenance of the statewide LPP project reporting data system.  Is this a separate line 
item that is required? If so, should the amount be based on the # of students served 
and/or another criteria and/or capped at 1%? The amount allocated for the Statewide 
LPP Reporting Data System should not exceed 1% of each applicants proposed budget.  
 
XII. APPLICATION REVIEW AND RATING PROCESS  



If only 1, possibly 2 grants will be funded per region, are you giving precedent to IHE's 
with pre-existing LPP's?  No, at a minimum each region will have the ability for at least 
two successful applicants.  We will award more per region providing the applicant 
receives a passing score and the dollars reach those in remaining in the statewide pool 
according to highest passing score.  

What is the maximum number of students allowed, 240 or 280?  The maximum award 
will be $350,000 for projects that propose to serve at least 280 students at a rate of 
$1,250 per participant.  The minimum award amount will be $200,000 to serve at least 
160 students. Applications requesting $300,000 must serve at least 240 students.  There 
is not a cap on the maximum number of students; however, there is a maximum cost 
per student of $1,250 for requests above $300,000. 

.  

The total possible score for application section # 3 - proposal narrative - is 45 points 
based on the heading for that section in the rubric on page 51 of the RFP.  The 
corresponding assigned values detailed in the rubric on pages 51-52 actually add up to 
49 points. Can you please clarify?  Updates to the scoring rubric have been posted to the 
NYSED LPP website. 

I would like to know the estimated turnaround time for announcing who will be awarded 
the grants. Notification of awards should be received by August 31, 2012. 

Is it the intent of SED (given the new regions and decrease in number of grants) to fund 
at least one urban (Big 5) proposal and one that supports others such as rural and 
suburban?  No. The intent of the 14 regional distributions is to provide dropout 
prevention services in each region of the state. 

If there were more than one grant funded for an urban district in the past with multiple 
institutions, would it be likely only one would be funded in the new cycle, and is so is the 
expectation to cover all high or middle schools for that district? No. The process is to 
fund the two highest scoring applicants in each region and the remaining appropriation 
will be used to fund the remaining eligible applicants statewide according to highest rank 
regardless of the region where they are located.    

 
XIII. FUNDING POLICY FOR PROPOSAL CYCLE 

On pg. 31 (6b) are LMHC's eligible for the counseling component? If LMHC is Mental 
Health Counseling License, No, only the titles identified on page 31 section 6b are 
allowable. 

 
2. NEED FOR PROJECT 
 
Referencing C4 of Partnerships, are position descriptions to be included in the narrative 
or as an attachment with the organizational chart? 
Applicants should describe the management structure, positions, and the responsibilities 
of personal that are on staff who are responsible for the planning, implementation, and 



delivery of services to the proposed project in the Need for Project section.  
Organizational Charts and Position Descriptions are considered attachments and will not 
count in the 30 page limit for the Technical Section of the RFP.  
 
3. PROPOSAL NARRATIVE 

Our current partnered school district is a “Title I” school; will this make them eligible to 
be our LEA going forward with this next RFP for 2012-2017?  All New York State LEAs 
are eligible partners, proposals that seek to partner with LEAs/student populations that 
are most at risk will receive greater points 

On page 42, #3, it asks us to identify which intervention models are utilized as partners 
in the proposed project and lists many options. Are we required to form partnerships 
with these partners? It’s a very short time frame to try to establish a partnership in 4 
weeks with these partners. We can work towards building a partnership with these 
partners, but it may not be secure to write it in the grant at this point. Or, rather, are we 
expected to provide programming that is based on these models but does not require 
official partnership with these partners?   LPP is a collaborative effort; proposals that 
demonstrate, these and other collaborations/partnerships will receive greater points. 
 
 
TECHNICAL & BUDGET SECTIONS 
 
I have received the requirement updates for the technical & budget sections but am still 
unclear on the number of pages allowable for the budget narrative. Can you please 
clarify? There is no page limit requirement for the budget section.   The proposal states 
Abstract (2 pages max) Need for Project (10 pages max) and Narrative (18 pages max). 
That gives us the 30 pages. Are we to assume that the budget narrative needs to be 
included in the Narrative section? There are two distinct sections of the proposal the 
Technical 30 page maximum and the Budget Section no page requirement. 
 
Page 24 indicates the 2-page abstract is included in the 30-page limit for the technical 
and budget sections?  If so, this presents a challenge since the need for project section 
is limited to 10 pages and the proposal narrative section is limited to 18 pages, 
leaving only 2 pages for both the budget section and the abstract. Can you please 
clarify?  There are two distinct sections of the proposal the Technical which has a 30 
page maximum which includes Abstract (2 pages max) Need for Project (10 pages max) 
and Narrative (18 pages max). The second section of the proposal is the Budget Section 
which does not have a page requirement.  That gives us the 30 pages. Are we to assume 
that the budget narrative needs to be included in the Narrative section? No, the budget 
section (does not have a page number requirement) it is totally distinct and separate 
from the Technical Section (30 page requirement) 
 
Related to question #3 above, the budget section consists of the FS10 form, the LPP 
composite summary form, a budget narrative and the payee information form. These 
forms and required narrative will consist of no fewer than 5 pages, which is also at odds 
with the 30-page limit in the context of the need for project and proposal narrative 
sections. Can you please clarify?  The Budget Section does not have a page requirement.   
 



PLEASE NOTE: IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING, THE PAGE LIMIT AND LINE 
SPACING REQUIREMENT FOR THE TECHNICAL SUBMISSION SECTION 
(ABSTRACT, NEED FOR PROJECT, AND PROPOSAL NARRATIVE) HAS BEEN 
CHANGED FROM 30 SINGLE SPACE PAGES TO 30 DOUBLE SPACE . THE BUDGET 
SECTION ALSO NEEDS TO BE DOUBLE SPACED. 
 
 
APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
 
Do you want us to attach any supporting documents referenced in the proposal such as 
evaluation tools?  No, the RFP articulates all required documents that will be reviewed, 
information outside of the requirements will not be reviewed. 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Is there a specific amount of time for new schools to get up to capacity in terms of 
number of students serve? for i.e., by our interim report or do we have a full year to 
reach student served capacity in a new school? Successful applicants are required to 
meet their target enrollment goals annually.  The project year will end August 31. 
 
 
Regarding the durable goods form, the RFP indicates that applicants should list 
equipment purchased for the current funding cycle.  Is this form asking for an accounting 
of FY 2012 goods from current grantees or is it something that should be completed for 
proposed purchases? The Durable Goods Form will need to be completed at the end of 
the 2012-2013 program year for applicants that are awarded an LPP Grant Contract. 
 
Please note while still trying, I was unable to view the webinar as there was no place on 
Blackboard to do so--the screen requested  login, password but nowhere to register as a 
new user. 
Instructions to access the pre-recorded webinar is posted at the NYSED LPP Website 
 
Please differentiate between C2 and C3 on page 49 of the rubric. They both seem to be 
asking for the same information in terms of the inclusion of families in the 
implementation of the project. Updates to the scoring Rubric have been posted to the 
NYSED LPP website. 
 
Please clarify the grant language on page 45 i and how it relates to the rubric a.3.i on 
page 52. The two descriptions do not seem to coincide making it confusing to interpret. 
Updates to the scoring Rubric have been posted to the NYSED LPP website. 

Please give an example of a goal and benchmark for a.3.i on page 52 of the rubric.  The 
RFP is a competitive process.  SED providing examples may give a competitive 
advantage to certain applicants.  The applicant’s response should be contingent upon the 
project design.  The development of goals and benchmarks should be developed from 
the theoretical framework and methodological approach as explained in the assessment 
section of the project narrative.  Goals and bemchmarks should be a logic extension of 
those two elements.  



Please clarify LPP's expected role as it relates to "educational decision-making 
processes".  To advocate and provide best practices as it relates to at risk student’s 
ability to stay in school and persist with academic achievement.  

 

 

 

 
 
 


